

Council

6th June 2011

MINUTES

Present:

Councillor Anita Clayton (Mayor) and Councillors Peter Anderson, Rebecca Blake, Michael Braley, Andrew Brazier, Juliet Brunner, Michael Chalk, Simon Chalk, Greg Chance, Brandon Clayton, Andrew Fry, Carole Gandy, Adam Griffin, Malcolm Hall, Bill Hartnett, Roger Hill, Gay Hopkins, Robin King, Wanda King, Alan Mason, Phil Mould, Jinny Pearce, Brenda Quinney, Mark Shurmer, Luke Stephens and Derek Taylor

Also Present:

M Collins (Vice Chair, Standards Committee)

Officers:

M Bough, T Buckley, K Dicks, C Felton, S Hanley and J Pickering and S Skinner

Committee Services Officer:

I Westmore

18. WELCOME

The Mayor opened the meeting and welcomed all present. The Mayor's celebrant, June Saville, led the Council in a moment's reflection.

19. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors David Bush, William Norton and Debbie Taylor.

20. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

Chair

Council

21. MINUTES

RESOLVED that

subject to it being noted that the Mayor's Award for Outstanding Service to the Community had been awarded to Mrs Lorna White, with the three additional recipients being awarded unconnected commendations (Minute 4 b.), the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 23rd May 2011 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Mayor.

22. COMMUNICATIONS AND MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Mayor's communications and announcements were considered under the following headings:

a) <u>Mr Robert Griffith</u>

The Mayor advised that a very brief and informal visit had been made to the Town Hall recently by former Chairman of the Redditch Urban District Council, Mr Robert Griffith who had served in that capacity in 1954-55. Mr Griffith had sent his regards to the present Council.

b) <u>Mayor's Announcements</u>

The Mayor advised that since the previous meeting of the Council she had taken part in a very enjoyable visit to the twin town of Auxerre. The Mayor also advised that she and the Deputy Leader had attended the funeral of Mr Andy Teepe, the Council's Senior Solicitor the previous week.

c) <u>Forthcoming events</u>

The Mayor advised that forthcoming events included: a brief visit from our other French twin – Gruchet Le Valasse over the forthcoming weekend, including a Barn Dance on the Saturday night, the Civic Service at Wychavon, the Opening of Grounds Project at Vaynor First School, a Girlguiding Celebration of Achievement, the Bridge Church Fete, the Civic Service at Worcester Cathedral, the Armed Forces Day Fly a Flag celebration and the Primrose Hospice Choir Charity Concert.

23. LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

There were none.

24. QUESTIONS ON NOTICE

No questions had been received.

25. MOTIONS ON NOTICE - WORCESTERSHIRE ACUTE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST

The Council considered an urgent Motion further to the very recent report of the Care Quality Commission (CQC) on the Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust and, amongst others, the Alexandra Hospital. The Motion had been submitted by Councillor Carole Gandy and seconded by Councillors Juliet Brunner and Bill Hartnett.

The Motion had been received at less than the required nine clear days notice. However, in view of the likely broad public interest in the matter, the Mayor agreed to its inclusion on the agenda in accordance with the powers vested in her.

Councillor Gandy reported that the report of the CQC, which had been critical of the care provided at the Alexandra Hospital in a number of areas, had been a huge disappointment to her and many local residents. Whilst it was clear that much of the care provided at the Hospital was excellent, these were serious matters that had been raised and the Council had a moral obligation to raise its concerns with the PCT. It was reported that the Leader of the Council, along with the Portfolio Holder for Housing, Local Environment and Health and the Leader of the Opposition were to be invited to a meeting with the Chairman of the PCT, the Head of Nursing and the Chief Executive of the PCT, should a replacement for Mr John Rostill have been appointed by that stage.

Councillors Brunner and Hartnett supported the Motion and expressed their sadness at this turn of events and their desire for the proposed scrutiny into the apparent shortcomings to be suitably rapid and meaningful. The hope was expressed that the exercise might in part be held within Redditch to provide for the involvement of local Councillors and residents in the process.

A number of Members expressed complementary views and it was consequently

RESOLVED that

the Motion be agreed in the following terms:

"Redditch Borough Council wishes to express its deep concern regarding the recent Care Quality Commission report on the Worcestershire Acute Health Trust.

The Trust has failed to meet legal standards for nutrition, hydration and dignity.

Council

Public confidence in the Trust has deteriorated and this Council is concerned about the health and welfare of patients in the Alexandra Hospital.

This Council requests that:

- 1) Worcestershire PCT undertake a scrutiny into the management systems that enabled this failure to occur;
- 2) Worcestershire Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel undertake an urgent scrutiny into the standards of care given to patients; and
- 3) Worcestershire Acute Hospital NHS Trust undertake scrutiny on their failures and report back the measures they have put in place to reassure the public."

26. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Members received the minutes of the meetings of the Executive Committee held on 12th April and 23rd May 2011.

RESOLVED that

1) the minutes of the meeting of the Executive Committee held on 12th April 2011 be received and all recommendations approved, subject to:

> in respect of Minute 214 (Member Development Steering Group, 31st March 2011 – Referrals) it being noted that compulsory training was a requirement only for members sitting on quasi-judicial bodies (Member Development Programme 2011/12) and that implementation of the amended policy on the forwarding of Council e-mails to personal e-mail accounts be delayed to July 2011 (Members' ICT Facilities – Policy).

2) the minutes of the meting of the Executive Committee held on 31st May 2011 be received and all recommendations approved.

27. REGULATORY COMMITTEES

The Council received the minutes of the recent meetings of the Audit and Governance Committee, Planning Committee and Standards Committee.

RESOLVED that

- 1) the minutes of the Audit and Governance Committee held on 18th April 2011 be received and all recommendations approved;
- 2) the minutes of the meetings of the Planning Committee held on 29th March and 27th April 2011 be received and adopted; and
- 3) the minutes of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 20th April 2011 be received and adopted.

28. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

The Council considered a brief report detailing a number of administrative matters arising since the Council's Annual Meeting.

RESOLVED that

- 1) the appointment of a second Council representative to Where Next? Association (Councillor Wanda King) be noted;
- 2) the expansion of the membership of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee from 9 to 11 and the appointment of Councillor Brenda Quinney and an additional Member of the Minority Labour Group be approved;
- the permissibility of substitutes on the Parent Overview and Scrutiny be approved and the Council's Constitutional documents be amended, as appropriate; and
- 4) the appointment of Councillors Anita Clayton, Malcolm Hall and a Member of the Minority Labour Group to the Town Centre Partnership be approved, in accordance with the changed requirements of that body.

29. URGENT BUSINESS - RECORD OF DECISIONS

There were no Urgent Business decisions under the Council's urgency procedures for consideration at this meeting.

30. URGENT BUSINESS - GENERAL

With the exception of the Urgent Notice of Motion which had been considered earlier in the evening, there were no separate items of Urgent Business for consideration at this meeting.



The Meeting commenced at 7.02 pm and closed at 8.15 pm

.....

MAYOR, in the Chair